Riverboats on the Green River

Can you picture a 60 foot long steamboat trying to make its way up and down the Green River
to Moab? That was the dream of John J. Lumsden, an aspiring steamboat entrepreneur, who
in 1904 created the Green-Grand River and Moab Navigation Company. A fancy new excursion
boat was built named the City of Moab. Her first launching was on May Day of 1905. It did not
go well as they quickly became hung up on a sand bar. The crew soon learned how to get off a
sand bar in 1 or 2 hours but never learned how to NOT get stuck on a bar in the first place. The
boat did not have any steering and floated with the current. “This attempt made it as far as
Halverson’s Ranch , seven miles below Green River before they ran out of fuel”. Not quite ready
to give up, a year was spent completely redesigning the boat. They renamed it the Cliff Dweller.
They removed the fancy cabins, boiler, and made her hull 10 feet longer. The next attempt was
made on November of 1905 but without her new engine, this was met again with no success.

On August 6, 1906 they made another attempt to reach Moab, but still continued to get
stuck on one sand bar after another. They turned around and headed back to Green River. On
April 1907 Lumsden dismantled her and sent the Cliff Dweller to Saltair on the Great Salt Lake.

For more information see Steamboats on the Colorado River by Richard E. Lingenfelter




Ray’s Tavern

Legend has it that Ray’s Tavern in Green River, Utah, was
established in the 1940s after Ray Sherill returned from
the Navy. He began Ray’s Tavern in the Baxter Building
on the south end of Broadway Street, which is now the
site of Epicenter. After acquiring the Ben Bolt Building
built in 1906 on North Broadway, he relocated Ray’s
Tavern there in 1945, where it remains to this day.

Bob Scott purchased Ray's Tavern in 1973 after two
years of working alongside Ray at the Tavern. The river
companies that guided rafting trips down the Green River
encouraged Bob to add a kitchen and serve burgers, as
they were often famished after their trips and not suitably
dressed or hygienically appropriate to enter any other
establishment! Bob added the kitchen, and the “World’s
Famous Burger” was born.

A large “Welcome Boaters” sign was painted on the front of the building, and Ray’s Tavern was
filled with thirsty and hungry patrons. Ray’s Tavern gained popularity due to its spirited
clientele: locals, boaters, White Sands missile base workers, and geologists traveling from
around the world to the area. Whether you were in the area for business or adventure, Ray’s
Tavern was the place for a fresh beef burger and cold beer on tap. In 1995, Bob sold Ray’s
Tavern to Cathy Gardner, who is approaching 25 years as the owner.

As the state liquor laws changed, Cathy needed to adjust the atmosphere slightly to better
accommodate families. During this period, Ray’s Tavern shifted from being a classic bar-like
establishment to focusing more on being welcoming to everyone. In fact, the phrase “Welcome
Boaters,” which had been painted across the front of the building, has been covered over and
replaced with “A place for everyone.”

Green River is a prime example of one of those forgotten places that are incredibly intriguing.
According to the town’s Wikipedia page, Green River was one of the pass-through areas on the
Old Spanish Trail trade route in the mid-1800s. In 18786, it became a river crossing for U.S. mail
and a popular stop for travelers. A railroad boom contributed to the town's growth until 1892,
when operations shifted elsewhere. However, the second boom in Green River — the one whose
remnants we see today — occurred in the mid-twentieth century when uranium mining brought
increased prosperity to the town. In the 1960s, an Air Force missile launch facility was also
established, and the population peaked during that decade. Unfortunately, once the mining
industry declined, the population fell to around 900, where it remains today.

Currently, most of the town’s economy relies on |-70, which caters to travelers, truckers, and
mountain bikers. The town is a popular free-ride spot. Additionally, there is a natural gas field
nearby. The town is quiet yet friendly, and by necessity, it welcomes outsiders.

https://www.instagram.com/p/C4GaMqg7sw47/?
utm source=ig web copy link&igsh=MzRIODBINWFIZA==

https://inlieuofpostcards.com/index.php/2018/01/25/forgotten-places-green-river/



Locate the Old Emery Cemetery

This is one of 4 cemeteries in the Muddy Creek/Emery area.
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Rochester/Moore

“In the year 1895-96 a group of farmers and businessmen from Ferron and Emery located homesteads
on what was called “ Independent Flats,” (better known as Poverty Flats). They Immediatley organized
the Independent Canal and Reservoir Company and started to build a canal to get water to their
homesteads.” The place was named Rochester by request by M. J. Whitney president of the canal
company, who had come from Rochester, New York”.

“In 1916 the school board built a nice school building”.

“In the Spring of 1924, L.C. Moore was appointed postmaster of Rochester. He served in this position
for 16 years.”Mr Moore was release as postmaster in January, 1940. At that time, through permission of
the United States Post office Department, the name of the town and post office was changed from
Rochester to “Moore”
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Swasey Dugout

The Swasey boys were some of the first people to tame the rough and rugged San
Rafael Swell.

In 1875 Rodney Degrass Swasey traveled with the Mormon pioneers to Mona, Utah to
settle. He sent his young sons to the Castle Valley area, Charles, age 22; Sidney, age
18; Rodney, age 15; and Joseph (Joe) age 13.

These men brought 800-900 horses with them to the area through Joe’s Valley.

Joseph Amos Swasey was born on May 10, 1861, in Provo, Utah.

He married Mary Etta McDonald on July 25, 1887, in Mona, Utah at their Swasey
Family "Mansion".

Swasey Dugout is where Joe and Mary Etta lived with their family.
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Millsite Golf Course

Millsite Golf Course, located at 3000 West Canyon Road in Ferron, Utah, is one of the most
majestic courses in the state. With picturesque desert views and a magnificent waterfall, this
course presents a real challenge and offers one of the most entertaining rounds of golf.

Millsite opened in 1988 and features an eighteen-hole course set in the mountainous region of
Castle Valley. Owned and operated by Ferron City, this par-71 target-style golf course is
located adjacent to the Millsite Reservoir and State Park. This area is undeniably one of Utah's
hidden treasures.

According to Scott Truman, "He lived and breathed the concept of the golf course from its
inception in 1977 until its completion and dedication 12 years later in 1989 as the Millsite,
dubbed the ‘best course by a dam site,” a phrase coined by Ben Killpack.”

The history of the Millsite Golf Course highlights community effort and what can be achieved
when individuals come together to support an idea or project.

The Millsite location was chosen because the Ferron Canal and Reservoir Company agreed to
make a portion of their land available, and the city had a small piece of land where the old
water treatment plant was located. The BLM was open to collaborating with the city on a
Recreation and Public Purpose lease (RNPP) for the additional land required for a golf course.
Ultimately, the land was accessible at minimal or no cost, and the site would also be
distinctive.

Once the site was selected, news spread that Ferron was planning to build a golf course. At
that point, various sources committed to assist. Bevan Killpack, a former Ferron resident with a
landscaping background, contacted Scott Truman and volunteered to help with the course
design. He reviewed the site, took pictures, and understood the overall layout. He collaborated
with John Evans, a Cedar City golf course professional, using those pictures and aerial photos.
He provided Ferron City with a preliminary artist's rendition of what the course and its holes
might look like.



Robert Behling, a former Ferron resident and golf course architect, and his partner Leonard
Grassli contributed to the effort to establish the course. Their firm, MGBA, a landscape design
company based in Salt Lake City, produced the professional drawings.

Mayor Max Ralphs made it clear to everyone who wanted to help that there was no money to
pay for their services. He stated that if anyone sought compensation, the city would be willing
to pay them if they raised funds for the design and construction.

The Utah Community Impact Board (CIB) provided funding for the course, granting a total of
$250,000. The final design work was completed, and bid documents for the construction and
sprinkler system were prepared. Kit Wareham, the project engineer, is credited for this effort.

Utah Power and Light (UPL) contributed to the construction of Milisite Golf Course by providing
the original Pro Shop, formerly an engineering building at the Hunter Plant. They also donated
the structural steel used for the bridge planking.

David Hankins and Industrial Electric supplied the power cable connecting the pump house to
the Pro Shop at their own expense. They donated a technician's time to splice the cable and
connect the power. When an earthquake struck during the first year and caused the pump to
fail, David arranged for a new pump to be flown in to prevent the newly planted grass from
dying.

Paul “Peanuts” Griffith from Christiansen and Griffith Construction in Tooele completed the final
grading of the greens, tee boxes, and fairways. Additionally, Mr. Griffith catered the barbecue
for the dedication. ‘

Nielsen Construction of Huntington obtained the rough grading contract. Kerwin Jensen
delivered all the sand supplied by M&O Construction.

Before planting, Principal Mower and the Ferron Elementary School students spent many hours
on field trips throwing rocks off the freeways. Several Eagle Scout projects contributed to
completing the course. Mike Yost’s Eagle Project built a deck around the shop, while Tyler
Truman organized crews to lay several semi-truckloads of sod on the boxes and hillsides.

The golf course was completed and prepared for play with a $250,000 grant from the CIB. After
witnessing the successes from the initial grant, the CIB invited another application and
provided funds for purchasing the first 10 golf carts, the greens mower, and additional
equipment. This added $91,000, bringing the total funding to $341,000, along with hundreds of
dollars in donated time and materials from both former and current residents. The course was
dedicated on May 19, 1989. When the site was constructed, the budget was set at $100,000
per hole and $10,000 per green.

Completing the Millsite Golf Course is a testament to the people of Ferron's commitment and
dedication to their community and their ability to work together to achieve remarkable
accomplishments.

A Peach of a Place, p. 101 - 103
https://millsitegolfcourse.com/



Locate Joe Swasey

The Swasey boys were some of the first people to tame the rough and rugged San
Rafael Swell.

In 1875 Rodney Degrass Swasey traveled with the Mormon pioneers to Mona, Utah to
settle. He sent his young sons to the Castle Valley area, Charles, age 22; Sidney, age
18; Rodney, age 15; and Joseph (Joe) age 13.

Joseph Amos Swasey was born on May 10, 1861, in Provo, Utah.
He married Mary Etta McDonald on July 25, 1887, in Mona, Utah at their Swasey
Family "Mansion".

Many rock formations and places are named by the brothers and most of those places
have a wild story to go with them!

Sid and Charley rock formation, Swasey Leap, Swasey Cabin, Swasey dugout (Where
Joe and his wife Mary lived with their family), ZCMI Mine, Swaseys Beach, Swasey
Rapids, Joe and His Dog, Eagle Canyon, Sid's Mountain, Devil's Canyon, Devil's
Racetrack, and Devil's monument.

"l guess the only ones worse than the Swaseys was the devil, so when they'd find a
really bad place, they'd name it something after the devil." - Monte Swasey

They ran horses, cows, sheep, and prospected for gold, silver and Uranium in the
mines, and maybe even had a still or two for moonshine!

They may not have gotten rich, but helped enrich the history of the San Rafael Swell!




Locate Eva Conover

Eva was a very important person in Ferron, Emery County, and Utah History, so we
would like to tell you about her!

Eva Aleen Conover was born November 2, 1908 in Huntington, Utah. She married
Harry Conover of Ferron.

She began her career as an elementary teacher in Ferron.

She was instrumental in bringing the telephone to Emery County. She was part of the
Emery County Farmer's Union telephone association company, which today is now
known as Emery Telcom.

She served on the Utah state legislature for 2 terms and helped secure the power plants
in Castle Dale and Huntington. Eva and her husband traveled to Egypt, representing the
Farmers and World Affairs Good Will Exchange Program.

She helped in beautifying Ferron's city parks and cemetery, and she started the Castle
Valley Historical Society.

In the 1960s, in order to build the interstate and Eagle Canyon Bridge, a road was
created to get the equipment necessary for building it into the canyons. County
Commissioner Eva Conover was instrumental in getting the access road built, so this
road is named for her, Eva Conover Trail.




CLAWSON

In 1897 the first homesteads began.” The little community was then called
Kingsville.” About two miles east of the current Clawson. In 1902 a request had
been made to select a permanent town site. A new sight was selected and the
town moved their cabins on to the newly laid out blocks. The land was purchased
from the Westingscow brothers.

“The firsts school was held in the winter of 1898, in the home of Guy King, with
Miss Florence Barney of Ferron as teacher. She rode 7 miles each way. Later a one
room log cabin was built.”

“In 1923 a $15,000 school house was started and finished the following year. In
the fall of 1931, the four upper grades were moved to Ferron Elementary School.
due to a decline in population. Children were transported by bus, and two years
later the entire school was taken.” The school was then bought by the Church of
Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints and used as a church in 1927.”

For more information see CASTLE VALLEY, A history of Emery County by the
Emery County Company of Daughters of Utah Pioneers




Hunter Power Plant

The history of the Hunter power plant began in the 1970s when Utah Power & Light
began building Huntington Power Plant and Hunter followed soon after. The first unit
came online in 1978, followed by the second unit in 1980 and the third in 1983.

It was first known as the Emery Unit, but was then renamed after E. Allan Hunter, who
was Chairman of boars and Chief Executive officer of UP&L.

This energy is transferred to the grid that powers the western United States, states such
as Arizona, California, New Mexico, Colorado, Idaho, Nevada, Oregon, Washington,
and Utah receive this.

Hunter power plant employs over 186 full-time employees and works with almost 40
contractors. It will see as many as 600 coal trucks who deliver coal in one day. The coal
is supplied by the surrounding mines in our area.

Photo Courtesy of Duane Cox



Joes Valley

The Swasey boys were some of the first people to tame the rough and rugged San
Rafael Swell.

In 1875 Rodney Degrass Swasey traveled with the Mormon pioneers to Mona, Utah to
settle. He sent his young sons to the Castle Valley area, Charles, age 22; Sidney, age
18; Rodney, age 15; and Joseph (Joe) age 13.

These men brought 800-900 horses with them to the area through Joe’s Valley.

Joes Valley is named after Joseph Swasey who had a cabin in the valley.

There is a story of Charley and Sid in this cabin. One day the brothers had been riding
and came in for the night. Sid was going to take care of the horses and Charley was
headed to the cabin to cook supper. As Charley was headed to the cabin, he witnessed
a bear walking into it. He hurried and caught up with Sid and told him he would take
care of the horses instead. So Sid headed into the cabin and Charley snuck up behind
him and shut the cabin door, locking it behind him and started yelling at Sid, "Fight him
fair! Fight him fair!"

Sid ended up killing the bear with a 3 legged stool and a fire poker.

This is an excerpt taken from Ed Geary's "A History of the Emery County Project”

"The drought of the mid-1930 highlighted the need for an augmented water supply. New
reservoirs were built and others enlarged. Several small irrigation and ditch companies
merged, pooling their resources to provide better service. The desire for a stable water
supply renewed interest in Joes Valley as a reservoir site. In 1937, the interest
promoted the project, seeking federal relief funds for construction. In 1941, the Bureau
of Reclamation supported construction of a reservoir in Joes Valley using funding from
the Works Progress Administration (WPA) and using CCC Labor with local water users
paying for about half the project. In order for the project to be feasible, water user from
both the Cottonwood Creek and Huntington Creek would have to join together. The
Huntington-Cleveland Irrigation District wanted to build a reservoir at Miller Flat, but
Reclamation rejected the idea as not feasible and urged the Huntington group to
support the Joes Valley plan. Cottonwood Creek water users unanimously supported
the Reclamation plan which would have given almost three-quarters of the project's
water to the Huntington Creek water users, but the Huntington Creek Contingent
withheld their support, electing to pursue the Miller Flat Reservoir themselves. Without
the support of the Huntington Creek water users, the Joes Valley project was reduces to
a low priority project. All projects in the region were put on hold by the outbreak of World
War Il in 1941".

"Following the end of World War Il, service men from Emery County returned home to
find relative economic prosperity. County farm income in 1946 was double that of 1940,
and the coal mines were operating at fairly high levels. During the post- war years, the
county matured and modernized as modern water and sanitation systems were
constructed, roads were improved, and many of the luxuries enjoyed by people in less
rural areas, like telephones, reached Emery County. While many things in Emery
County improved, some things did not. The agricultural sector still suffered for
inconsistent water supplies and a lack of significant long term storage. And In the mid-



1950s, the region again suffered from a period of low precipitation. It was also during
this time that the long sought after reservoir in Joes Valley would become a reality. In
1956 the Bureau of Reclamation received approval to construct the Colorado River
Storage Project which included development of Joes Valley as part of a participation
project.”

"The first contracts were let in 1962." "All major features were completed during the first
half of 1966." "Joes Valley Dam was excepted by Reclamation on June 23, and
deliveries of project water began on July 1, with deliveries to fields in the Cottonwood

Area-ﬂ
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Swasey Cabin located was near Swasey
Subdivision




Emery County Bank and Telephone Office

The Old Emery Bank was built by Pete Otteson for a furniture store. It was later used
as a schoolhouse and later a bank. It was then a telephone office with living quarters
upstairs.

Banks

The establishment of the first bank in Emery County was conceived by James Crawford Jr.,
Manti, Utah, who was engaged in the livestock business and president of the Manti City
Savings Bank. Through his efforts, the Emery County Bank Corporation was organized, and on
August 25, 1906, the bank opened for business in Castle Dale. The bank did a thriving
business from the start and justified Mr. Crawford's conviction of its worth to the people and
growth of Emery County.

During the severe financial depression of 1931-34, small banks across the state struggled to
stay in business, and many were forced to close. This led to significant economic losses for
numerous communities in Utah, including the banks in Eastern Utah. The officers and directors
of the Carbon Bank of Price and the Emery County Bank devised a plan to merge these two
banks to enhance their financial stability. This merger took place on February 22, 1932.

Zion's First National Bank constructed a new building in Castle Dale and commenced
operations on November 11, 1963. In August 1973, First National merged with Carbon—Emery
Bank in Castle Dale and Price. In 1973, Zions First National Bank established a branch in
Huntington, and in 1977, it opened another branch in Ferron.

Security Bank opened in Huntington in 1974 and another in Castle Dale in 1979.



